BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

In the Matter of the Accusation Against:
PHARM MED SERVICES

2129 Hacienda Way, Suite J
Sacramento, CA 95825

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 43141
JANIS ELAINE ONG

520 Thornley Way

Sacramento, CA 95864

Pharmacist License No. RPH 35380
LIGAYA SARAO

8750 Sunset Avenue

Fair Oaks, CA 95628

Pharmacist License No, RPH 40744

Case No. 5168

OAH No, 2015180009

Respondents.

DECISION AND ORDER

The attached Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby adopted by the

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs, as its Decision in this matter.

This Decision shall become effective on December 9, 2015,

It is so ORDERED on November 9, 2015.

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By
Amy Gutierrez, Pharm.D.
Board President
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KAMALA D, HARRIS
Attorney General of California
JANICE K. LACHMAN
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
KRISTINA T, JARVIS
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No. 258229
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
Telephone: (916) 324-5403
Facsimile: (916) 327-8643
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE
BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No. 5168
PHARM MED SERVICES OAH No. 2015180009
2129 Hacienda Way, Suite J
Sacramento, CA 95825 STIPULATED SURRENDER OF
JANIS ELAINE ONG, PIC/PARTNER LICENSE AND ORDER
LIGAYA 8. SAULER, PARTNER
Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 43141,
JANIS ELAINE ONG
520 Thornley Way
Sacramento, CA 95864
Phiarmacist License No. RPH 35380,
and
LIGAYA SARAQO
8750 Sunsct Avenue
Fair Oaks, CA 95628
Pharmacist License No. RPH 40744
Respondents.

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND AGREED by and between the parties to the above-
entitled proceedings that the following matters are true;
i
i/

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No, 5168)
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PARTIES

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy.
She brought this action solely in her official capacity and is represented in this matter by Kamala
D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Kristina T. Jarvis, Deputy Attorney
General,

2. On or about June 20, 1997, the Board of Pharmacy (Board) issued Pharmacy Permit
No. PHY 43141 to Pharm Med Services (“Respondent Pharm Med Services”) with Janis Elaine
Ong (“Respondent Ong”) as pharmacist-in-charge (PIC), and Ligaya Sarao (“Respondent Sarac™)
as partner. The pharmacy permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges
brought in Accusation No. 5168 and will expire on June 1, 2016, unless renewed.

3, On or about August 12, 1980, the Board issued Pharmacist License Number RPH
35380 to Respondent Ong. The pharmacist iicense was in full force and effect at all times
relevant to the charges brought in Accusation No. 5168 aﬂd will expire on November 30, 2015,
unless renewed. 7

4, On or about May 2, 1987, the Board issued Pharmacist License Number RPH 40744
to Respondent Sarao. The pharmacist license was in full force and effect at all times relevant to
the charges brought in Accusation No. 5168 and will expire on February 28, 2016, unless
renewed,

5. Respondents are representing themselves in this proceeding and have chosen not to
exercise their rights to be represented by counsel.

JURISDICTION

6.  Accusation No, 5168 was filed before the Board and is currently pending against
Respondents, The Accusation and all other statutorily required documents were properly served
on Respondents on April 20, 2015. Respondents timely filed their Notices of Defense contesting
the Accusation. A copy of Accusation No, 3168 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated by
reference,

i
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Stipulated Surrender of License {Case No, 5168)
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ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS

7. Respondents have carefully read, and understand the charges and allegations in
Accusation No. 5168. Respondents also have carefully read, and understand the effects of this
Stipulated Surrender of License and Order.

8. Respondents are fully aware of their legal rights in this matter, including the right to a
hearing on the charg'es and allegations in the Accusation; the right to be represented by counsel, at
their own eﬁpense; the right to confront and cross-examine the witnesses against them; the right
to present evidence and to testify on their own behalf; the right to the issuance of subpoenas to
compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents; the right to reconsideration
and court review of an adverse decision; and all other rights accorded by the California
Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws.

9.  Respondents voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and
every right set forth above, _

CULPABILITY

10. Respondents admit the truth of each and every charge and allegation in Accusation
No. 5168, agree that cause exists for discipline and hereby surrenders their licenses, Pharmacy
Permit No. PHY 43141 (Respondent Pharm Med Services), Pharmacist License No. RPH 35380
(Respondent Ong), and Pharmacist License No. RPH 40744 (Respondent Sarao) for the Board's
formal acceptance. _

11, Respondents understand that by signing this stipulation they, and each of them enable
the Board to issue an order accepting the surrender of their Pharmacy Permit and Pharmacist
Licenses without further process.

CONTINGENCY

12.  This stipulation shall be subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondents
understand and agree that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Board of Pharmacy may
communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and surrender, without notice to or
participation by Resbondents. By signing the stipulation, Respondents understand and agree that
they may not withdraw their agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the time the

3 .

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No, 5168)
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Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its D.ecision and
Order, the Stipulated Surrender and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or effect, except for
this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the parties, and the Board shall
not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter.

13. The parties understand and agree that Portable Document Format (PDF) and facsimile
copies of this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order, including PDF and facsimile signatures
thereto, shall have the same force and effect as the originals.

14. This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is intended by the parties to be an
integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement.
It supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, discussions,
negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Surrender of License and Order
may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed except by a writing
executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties,

15. In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the parties agree that
the Board may, without further notice or formal proceeding, issue and enter the following Order:

ORDER

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 43141, issued to Respondent
Pharm Med Services, Pharmacist License No. RPH 35380, issued to Respondent Janis Elaine
Ong, and Pharmacist License No. RPH 40744, issued to Respondent Ligaya Sarao, are
surrendered and accepted by the Board of Pharmacy.

1. The surrender of Respondents’ Pharmacy. Permit and each of their Pharmacist’
Licenses and the acceptance of the surrendered permit and licenses by the Board shall constitute
the imposition of discipline against all Respondents. This stipulation constitutes a record of the
discipline and shall become a part of Respondents’ permit and license history with the Board of
Pharmacy.

2. Respondent Pharm Med Services shall lose all rights and privileges as a Pharmacy in
California as of the effective date of the Board’s Decision and Order, Respondent Janis Elaine

Ong shalt lose all rights and privileges as a Pharmacist in California as of the effective date of the

4
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Board's Decision and Order. Respondent Ligaya Sarao shall lose all rights sand privileges s a
Pharmagist in Callfornia as of the effective date of the Board.’.s Decision and Order.

3. Respondents shall cause to be delivered 10 the Board their pockel licenses and, if one
was issued, their wall certificates on or before the effective date of the Decision and Order,

4. Respondent shall not be able to apply for réinstatemcnt or a new Heense or permit
from the Board of Pharmacy lor three (3) years feom the date of the Order, Tf'Respondents ever
file an application for licensure or pharmacy permit, or a petition for feinstatement in the State of
California, the Board shall treat it aé a new application for licensure. Respondents must comply
with all the laws, regulations and procedures for relnstatement of'a revoked permit or license in
effect at the time the petition is filed, and all of the charges and allegations contained in
Accusalion No. 5168 shall be deemed to be truc, correct and admitted by Respondent when the
Board determines whether to grant or deny the petition, |

5 Réspondents shall pay the agency its costs of investigation and enforcement in the
amount of $23,588.00 prior to issuance of a new or reinstated license. Respondents are jointly
and severally Hable for all costs.

6. IfRespondents should ever apply or reapply for a new license or certilication, or
petition for reinstaterent of a license, by any other health care licensing agency in the State of
California, all of the charges and allegations contained in Accusation, No. 5168 shall be deemed
to be true, correct, and admitted by Respondents for the purpose of any Statement of Issues or any
other procéeding seeking to deny or restrict licensure, -

ACCEPTANCE

1, Janis Elaine Ong, have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Qrder. 1

understand the stipulation and the cffcet it witl have on my Pharmacy Permit and Pharmacist

License. I enter into this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and

intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy.

pATED: _ ql2nf 2018 Oyt o (W

JANIS FLAINE ONGG, for herselfland on bebalf of
PHARM MED SERVICES
Respondents

5
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1, Ligaya Sarao, havi: carefully read the Stipulated Surreriler of Livense and

erstand the ﬁtipulation and the effict it will have on my f’hapmc’:y Permoit and Bharmacist

icense, I enter into this S;tipulated Surrender of License and Qrdér votuntarily, knowingly, and

ntelligently, and agree to be bound by the Deoision and Order pf the Board of Phy
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Respondents

RVICES

JANICE K. TLACHMAN

KRISTINA T JARVIS
Atttmwy Gengral
Attorneys fi

BA2014113497
11981945, doc - -

I)atec%; Respectfully submitted,
Attomey General of Californid

r Complainant |

, for Herself" and ofi behalf of

Supervising Deputy Attorney iﬁeneral
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ACCEPTANCE

I; Ligaya Sarao, have carefully read the Stipulated Surrender of License and Order. 1
understand the stipulation and the effect it will have on my Pharmacy Permit and Pharmacist
License. I enter into this Stipulated Surrender of License and Order voluntarily, knowingly, and

intelligently, and agree to be bound by the Decision and Order of the Board of Pharmacy.

DATED:

LIGAYA SARAQ, for herself and on behalf of
PHARM MED SERVICES
Respondents

ENDORSEMENT

The foregoing Stipulated Surrender of License and Order is hereby respectfully submitted

for consideration by the Board of Phérmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs.

Dated: September 24, 2015 Resi)ectfully submitted,

KAMALA D. HARRIS ,

Attorney General of California
JANICE K. LACHMAN

Supervising Deputy Attorney General

KRISTINA T. VIS

Deputy Attorney General
Attorneys for Complainant

SA2014115497
11981945.doc

Stipulated Surrender of License (Case No. 5168)
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KAMALA D. HARRIS
Atiorney General of California
JANICE K. LACHMAN
Supervising Deputy Attorney General
KrISTINA T'. JARVIS
Deputy Attorney General
State Bar No, 258229
1300 I Street, Suite 125
P.O. Box 944255 ‘
Sacramento, CA 94244-2550
“Telephone: (916) 324-5403
Facsimile: {916) 327-8643
Attorneys for Complainant

BEFORE THE

BOARD OF PHARMACY
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS
STATE OF CALIFORNIA '
In the Matter of the Accusation Against: Case No, 5168
PHARM MED SERVICES
2129 Hacienda Way, Suite J
Sacramento, CA 95825 ACCUSATION

JANIS ELAINE ONG, PIC/PARTNER
LIGAYA S. SAULER, PARTNER

Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 43.141,

JANIS ELAINE ONG

520 Thornley Way -

Sacramento, CA 95864

Pharmacist License No. RPH 35380,
and -

LIGAYA SARAO

8750 Sunset Avenue

Fair Oaks, CA 95628

Pharmacist License No. RPH 40744

Respondents,

Complainant alleges:

PARTIES

1 ‘Virginia Herold (“Complainant”) brings this Accusation solely in her official capacity

as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy (“Board”), Department of Consumer Affairs.

1

Accusation
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2, Onor about June 20,_ 1997, the Board issued Pharmacy Permit Number PITY 43141 to
Pharm Med Services (‘“Respondent Pharm Med Services”) with Janis Elaine Ong (“Respondent
Ong”) as pharmacist-in-charge and partner and Ligaya Sarac (“Respondent Sarao”) as partner,
The pharmacy permit was in'full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein
and will expire on June 1, 2015, unless renewed. |

3. Onorabout August 12, 1980, the Board issued Pharmacist License Number RPH
35380 to Respondent Ong., The pharmacist license was in full force and effoct at all times relevant
to the charges brought herein and will expire on November 30, 20135, uniess renewed,

4. Onor abont May 2, 1987’, tne Board issued Pharmacist License Number RPH 40744
to Respondent Sarao, The pharmacist license was in full force and effect at all times relevant to
the charges brought herein and will expire on February 28, 2015, unless renewed,

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board under the authority of the following laws,
All section references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY PROVISIONS
(Statutory Provisions)

6. Code section 4300 states, in pertinent part;

(a) Bvery license issued may be suspended or revoked.

(b) The board shall dlsclphne the holder of any license issued by the board,
whose default has been entered or whose case has been heard by the board and found
guilty, by any of the following methods:

(1) Suspending judgment.

(2) Placing him or her upon probation.

(3) Suspending his or her right to practice for a period not exceeding one
year.

(4) Revoking his or her license.

(5) Taking any other action in relation to disciplining him or her 8s the
board in its discretion ay deem proper _

i
i

Accusation
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7.  Code sectiop 4300.1 states:

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued
license by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or & court of law, the -
placement of a license on a retwed status, or the voluntary surrender of a license by a
licensee shall not deprive the board of Junsdlcnon to commence or proceed with any
investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the licensee or to render
a decision suspendmg or revoking the license.

8  Code section 4301 states, in pertment part:

The board shall take action against any helder of a license who is guﬂty of
unprefessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but is
not limited to, any of the following;

(f) The commission of any act involving moral turpitude, dishonesty,
fraud, deceit, or corruption, whether the act is commitied in the course of relations as
a licensee or otherwise, and whether the act is a felony or misdemeanor or not,

() The violation of any of the statutes of this state, or any other state, or
of the United States regulating controlled substances and dangerous drugs,

(!) The conviction of 2 crime substantially related to the qualifications,
functions, and duties of a licensée under this chapter. The record of conviction of a
violation of Chapter 13 (commencing with Section 801) of Title 21 of the United
States Code regulating controlled substances or of a violation of the statutes of this
state regulating controlled substances or dangerous drugs shall be conclusive evidence
of unprofessional conduct. In all other cases, the record of conviction shall be
conchigive evidence only of the fact that the conviction occurred. The board may
inquire into the circumstances surrounding the commission of the crime, in order to fix
the degree of discipline or, in the case of a conviction not involving controlled
substances or dangerous drugs, to determine if the conviction is of an offense
substantially related to the qualifications, functions, and duties of a licensee under this
chapter. A plea or verdict of guilty or a conviction following a plea of nolo coniendere
is deemed to be a conviction w1th1n the meaning of this provision, . . . . :

(0) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in
or abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this

. chapter or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing

pharmacy, including regulatmns establishied by the board or by any other state or

-federal regulatory egency .

Accusation
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9.  Code section 4307 states, in pertinent part;

() Any person . . . whose license has been revoked or is under suspension
.. . or who has been a manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director,
associate, or partner of any partnership, corporation, firm, or association whose
application for a license has been denied or revoked, is under suspension or has been
placed on probation, and while acting as the manager, administrator, owner, member,
officer, director, associate, or partner had knowledge of or knowingly participated in
any conduct for which the license was . . . revoked, suspended, or placed on '
probation, shall be prohibited from serving as a manager, administrator, owner,
member, officer, director, associate, or partner of a licensee as follows:

(1) Where & probationary license is issued or where an existing license is
placed on probation, this prohibition shall remain in effect for a period not to exceed
five years. .

(2) Where the license is denied or revoked, the prohibition shall continue
until the license is isswed or reinstated.

(b) "Manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director, associate,
or pariner," as used in this section and Section 4308, may refer to a pharmacist or to
any other person who serves in that capacity in or for a licensee . . .

10. Code section 4022 states:

"Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe
for self-use in humans or animals, and icludes the following: =~ =

(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits
dispensing without preseription,” "Rx only," or words of similar import.

-~ (b) Any device that bears the sigiement: "Caution: federal law restricts this
device to sale by or on the order of g -------- ," "Rx only," or words of sitilar import,
the blank to be filled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or order
use of the device.

(e) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully
dispensed only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006.

11. Code section 4081 states, in pertinent part:

(2) Allrecords of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open
to inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least three
years from the date of making. A current inventory shall be kept by every
manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food-animal drug retailer, physician,
dentist, podiatrist, veterinariaz, laboratory, clinfe, hospital, institution, or establishment
holding & currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, permit, registration, or
exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 1200) of the Health and Safety
Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of Division ¢ of the Welfare
and Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangéerous drugs or dangerous devices.

Accusation
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(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or
veterinary food-animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the
pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and
inventory described in this section . . . '

12. Code section 4105 states, in pertinent part:
(a) All records or other documentation of the acquisition and disposition

of dangerous drugs and dangerous devices by any entity licensed by the board shall be .
retained on the licensed premises in & readily retrievable form.

(¢) The records required by this section shall be retained on the licensed
premises for a period of three years from the date of making.

(¢)(1) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a), (b}, and (c), the board, may upon
written request, grant to a licensee a waiver of the requirements that the records
described in subdivisions (a), (b), and (¢) be kept-on the licensed premises . . .

13, Code section 4113, subdivision (c), states that “[t]he pharmacist-in-charge shall be -

responsible for a pharmacy's compliance with all state and federal laws and regulations pertaining

to the practice of pharmacy”.

14. Code section 4115 states, in pertinent part:

{e) No person shall act as a pharmacy technician without first being
licensed by the board as a pharmacy technician.

(k) The pharmacist on duty shall be direcily respoﬁsible for the conduct of
a pharmacy technician supervised by that pharmacist, '

15, Code section 4332 states;

Any person who fails, neglects, or refuses to maintain the records required
by Section 4081 or who, when called upon by an authorized officer or a member of the
board, fails, neglects, or refuses to produce or provide the records within a reasonable
time, or who willfully produces or furnishes records that are false, is guilty of a
misdemeanor. o : '

16, Code section 4333 states, in pertinent part:

(a) All prescriptions filled by a pharmacy and all other records required by
Section 4081 shall be maintained on the premises and available for inspection by
authorized officers of the law for a period of at least three years. In cases where the

~ pharmacy discontinues business, these records shall be maintained in 4 board-licensed

facility for at least three years.

Accusation
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(e)(1) Notwithstanding subdivisions (a) and (b), the board may, upon
written request, grant a waiver of the requirement that the records described in
subdivisions (2} and (b) be maintained on the licensed prernisés or, in the event the
pharmacy discontinues business, that the records be maintained in a board licensed
tacility. A person who maintains records in compliance with that waiver is not subject
to the penalties set forth in subdivision (b) . . .

17. Code section 4342, subdivision (a), states:

The board may institote any action or actions as may be provided by law
and that, in its discretion, are necessary, to prevent the sale of pharmaceutical
preparations and drugs that do not conform to the standard and tests as to quality and
strength, provided in the latest edition of the United States Pharmacopoeia or the
National Formulary, -or that violate any provision of the Sherman Food, Drug and

Cosmetic Law (Part 5 (commencing with Section 109875) of Division 104 of the
Health and Safety Code), :

18. Health and Safety Code section 110290 states:

In determining whether the labeling or advertisement of a food, drug,
device, or cosmetic is misleading, all representations made or suggested by statement,
word, design, device, sound, or any combination of these, shall be taken into account,
The extent that the labeling or advertising fails to reveal facts concerning the food,
drug, device, or cosmetic or consequences of customary use of the food, drug, device,
or cosmetic shall also be considered. :

19.  Health and Safety Code section 111330 states that “[a]ny drug or device is misbranded
if its labeling is false or mislca:ding in any particlilar”.- |
20. Health and Safety Code section 111355 states, in pertinent part:

(a) Any drug is misbranded unless its label bears, to the exclusion of any
other nonproprietary name except the applicable, systematic chemical name or the
chernical formula, all of the following information: _ :
(1) The established name of the drug, ifany ...
21, Health and Safety Code section 111440 states that “[i]t is unlawful for any person to
manvfacture, sell, deliver, hold, or offer for sale any drug or device that is misbranded,”

22, Title 21, United States Code, section 802 states, in pertinent part:

-As-used in this title:

(27) The term "ultimate user" means a person who has lawfully obtained,
and who possesses, & controlled substarnce for his own use or for the use.of a member
of his household or for an animal owned by him or by a member of his household . . .

H
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23, Title 21, United States Code, section 822, states, in pertinent part:

(g) Delivery of controlled substances by ultimate users for disposal.

(1) An ultimate user who has lawfully obtained a.controlled substance in
accordance with this title may, without being registered, deliver the controlled
substance to another person for the purpose of disposal of the controlled substance if--

-~ (A) the person receiving the controlled substance is authorized under this
title to engage In such activity; and '

(B) the disposal takes place in accordance with regulations issued by the
Attomey General to prevent diversion of controlled substances . . .

(Regulatory Provisions)
24,  Title 21, Code of Federal Regulations, section 1300.01 states, in pertinent part:

(a) Any term not defined in this part shall have the definition set forth in
section 102 of the Act (21 U.8.C, 802), except that certain terms used in part 1316 of
this chapter are defined at the beginning of each subpart of that part,

(b) As used in parts 1301 through 1308 and part 1312 of this chapter, the
following terms shall have the meanings specified:

Administration means the Drug Enforcement Administration . , .

25. Title 21, Code ofFederal‘Regulations, section 1304,11 stdtes, in pertinent part: '

(a) General requirements. Each inventory shall contain a complete and
accurate record of all controlled substances on hand on the date the inventory is taken,
and shall be maintained in written, typewritten, or printed form at the registered
location. An inventory taken by use of an oral recording device must be promptly
transcribed. Controlled substances shall be deemed to be "on hand" if they are in the-
possession of or under the contro! of the regisirant, including substances returned by a
custorer, ordered by a customer but not yet invoiced, stored in a warchouse on behalf
of the registrant, and substances in the possession of employees of the registrant and
intended for distribution as complimentary samples. A separate inventory shall be
made for each registered location and each independent activity registered, except as
provided in paragraph (){4) of this section, In the event controlled substances in the
possession or under the control of the registrant are stored at a location for which
he/she is not registered, the substances shall be included in the inventory of the
registered location to-which they are subject to control or to which the person
possessing the substance is responsible. The inventory may be taken ecither as of
opening of business or as of'the close of business on the inventory date and it shall be
indicated on the inventory.
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(c) Biennial inventory date, After the initial inventory is taken, the
registrant shall take a new inventory of all stocks of controlled substances on hand at
least every two years. The biennial inventory may be taken on any date which is within
two years of the previous biennial inventory date . . ,

26. Title 21, Code of Federal Regulations, section 1307.21 states, in pertinent part:

(a) Any person in possession of any controlled substance and desiring or
required to dispose of such substance may request assistance from the Special Agent in
Charge of the Administration in the area in which the person is located for authority
and instructions to dispose of such substance. The request should be made as follows:

(1) If the person is a registrant, he/she shall List the controlled substance or
substances which he/she desires to dispose of on DEA Form 41, and submit three
copies of that form to the Special Agent in Charge in his/her area; or

(2) If the person is not a registrant, he/she shall submit to the Special
Agent in Charge a letter stating:

(i) The name and address of the person;
(il) The name and quantity of each controlled substance to be disposed of;
(iif) How the applicant obtained the substance, if knowy and

(iv) The name, addrcss; and registration mymber, if known, of the persdn
who possessed the controlled substances prior to the applicant, if known,

(b) The Special Agent- in Charge shall authorize and instruct the applicant
to dispose of the controlled substance in one of the following manners:

(1) By transfer to person registered under the Act and authorized to
possess the substance;

(2) By delivery to é.nragent of the Administration or to the hearest office of
the Administration; '

: (3) By destruction in the presence of an agent of the Administration or
other authorized person; or. '

(4) By such other means as the Special Agent in Charge may determine to
assure that the substance does not become available to unauthorized persons. . .

27.  California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1714, subdivision (d), states:

-Each pharmacist while on duty shall be responsible for the security of the
prescription department, including provisions for effeciive control against theft or
diversion of dangerous drugs and devices, and records for such drugs and devices,
Possession of a key to the pharmacy where dangerous drugs and controlled substances
are stored shall be restricted to a pharmacist,
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28.  California Code of Regulations, titls 16, section 1718, states:

"Current Inventory” as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business |
and Professions Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all
dangerous drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in Sections 4081 and 4332,

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section
1304 shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years afier the date of
the inventory. .
‘ COST RECOVERY

29. Code section 125.3 provides, in pertinent part, that a Board may request the
administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have commitied a violation or violations of
the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and
enforcement of the case,

CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES/DANGEROUS DRUGS

30, “Altace” is a brand of ramipril and a dangeroué drug within the meaning of Code
section 4022 in that it requires a preseription under federal law, '

31 “Salsélate” is a dangerous drug within the meaning of Code section 4022 in that it
requires a prescription under federal law. |

32.  “Cleocin” is a brand of clindamycin and a dangerous drug within the meaning of Code
section 4022 in that it requires a preécription under federal law,

33. *Zyprexa” is a brand of olanzapine and a dangerous drug within the meaning of Code
section 4022 in that it requirés a prescription under federal law, |

34, “Iﬁvega.” is a brand of paﬁperidbne and a dengerous drug within the meaning of Code

sectioﬁ 4022 in that. it requires a prescriptibn under federal law,

35, “Abilify” is a brand of aripiprazole and a dangerous drug within the meaning of Code

- section 4022 in that it requires a preseription under federal law.

36. “Clozaril” is a brand of clozapine and a dangerous drug within the meaning of Code
section 4022 in that it reqﬁires a prescription undér federal law.

37. “Lyrica”, a brand of préga‘oalin, isa Schedule.V controlled substance as designated by
Health and Safety Code section 11058,
i
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38, “Ambien”, a brand of zolpidem tarirate, is a Schedule IV controlled substance as
designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d)(32). |

39. “Klonopin”, a brand of clonazepam, is a Schedule IV controlied substance as
designated by Health and Safety Co'dé sectior}' 1 1:057., subdivision (d@x7). .

BACKGROUND

L. Board Inspection of November 8, 2012:

40, Omor aBout November 8, 2012, Board InspectorslP. and I. went to Pharm Med
Services to conduct a routine inspection. There was no sign on the outside of the pharmacy and
the door was locked. The inspectors knocked on the door and were let inside. Respondent Sarao
(“Sarao”) came out of one of the rooms and introduced herself, .Sarao told the inspectors that |
Respondent Ong (“Ong"), their pharmacist-in-charge, was in China until approximately November
23,2012, The inspectors asked Sarao if the pharmacy provided prescriptions to long term care
facilities, Sargo stated that they pr'ovided ser_vicesalmost exclusively to board and care homes,
that they were a “closed pharmacy’ in that the public did net come to the pharmacy to pick up
prescriptions, and that their technicians and drivers delivered the prescriptions to the board and
care homes, The pharmacy consisted of three small rooms and a bathroom. There was a narrow
corridor leading.to the back room (‘.‘RMI") and it was 1ir.1ed with grocery bags stacked on top of
one another. The bags lc0ntaine.d _ﬁl]_edrbubble pack prescriptions.’

Unlicensed Practice:

41. Inspector P. observed 3 technicians working in the next room (“RM2”), including
pharmacy technician M. G. M. G. was ﬁlﬁng bubblé packs with drugs, Inspector P, asked the
technicians if their licenses were posted. They said yes and pointed to a bulletin board on the wall,

Inspector P. noticed that M, G.’s pharmacy technician license had expired (the Board’s website
showed that M. G.’s Hcense_ﬁad expired on Septem‘ber 30, 2012). Inspector P. asked Sarao if she

had a staff wérk schedule. Sarao provided Inspector P. with a document entitled “Employee

' Bubble packs are multi-dose calendar packs used to dispense medications. Drugs are
placed manually into the bubble packs by pharmacy staff and are visible to the user (the drugs are
encased in clear “bubbles” backed by a film that is easily punched out).

10
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Hours”, which indicated that M. G. was employed as a pharmacy technician and worked from 9:30
a.m. 1o 6:00 p.m, Inspector P, asked Sarao if M. G, had been working as a technician during her
scheduled work shifts and Sarao said yes.

42. Inspectors I, and P. found additional areas of non-compliance during their inspection,
including, but not limited to, the following:

Unduthorized Off-Site Storage of P.harmﬁcy Records:

43,  Sarao informed Inspectors 1. and P. that the pharmacy had a public storage site where
they stored most of their records. Inspector P. asked Sarao if she had at least 3 years of records
on site at the pharmacy. Sarao said no, then stated that the records were in storage. The

inspectors asked Sarao if she had obtained an off-site storage waiver from the Board, Sarao

- indicated that she did not know about the waiver. The ihspectors told Sarao that all of the records

that were ih storage were to be returned to the pharmacy immediately and that she could submit a
request to the Board for the waiver, but had to return all of the records until it was issued.

Failure to Complete DEA Biennial Inventory: .

44. The inspectors requested the pharmacy’s DEA Biennial Controlled Substance
Inventory. Sarao provided the inSpectors with her last “inventory paper”. The document showed
the pharmacy’s inventory of Schedule TII to V controlled substances only; there were no Schedule
II controlled substances listed, The .do,cument also did not contain the signature of the pharmacist
responsible for the inventbry or-the date and time the inventory was completed,

Expired, Unlabeled and Partially Labeled Drugs Found in Active Inventory:

45, While inspecting RM2, Inspector. P, obse_rved various blue tote bins containing dfugs.
Inspector P. fouﬁd multiple expired drugs rhixed in with the active drug stock in the bins, and

removed the expired drugs and placed themin a White tote. Inspector P. also found a large

number of unlabeled, clear, amber vials mixed in with the active drug inventory (the vials contained |.

loose pills). When Inspector P. opened the vials, she noticed, in many instances, that they were
filled with the same pills found in the stock bottle contained in the same blue tote. For example,
Inspector P. found an unlabeled vial of c]jndamyéin 300 mg capsules and a stock bottle of

clindamycin 300 mg capsules in the same tote (Inspector P. compared the markings on the

il
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capsules to verify that they were the same drug). 'In other blue totes, Inspector P. found unlabeled
vials containing tablets she could not identify as well as vials of drugs that were only partially
labeled. The inspectors found a vial marked “salsalate 500 mg”; the label did not list the
manufacturer, lot number or ekpiration date of the drug. The inspectors also found a bottle of
Altace 2.5 mg which had expired in April 2010, Insperl:t-or P. removed some of the drugs from the
blue totes and placed them it a brown tote. Inspector P. asked Sarao if this was the area where
pharrriacy staff pulled drugs to fill prescriptions fqr patients. Sarao said yes. Inspector P. pulled
the rest of the unlabeled or partially labeled drug vials and placed them in a red tote. The
inspectors told Sarao that all of the expired drugs and the drugs stored in unlabeled or partially
labeled amber vials were to be documented on a log and sent for destruction or return
immediately. ‘

1I, Follow-Up Inspection of November 13, 2012/Board’s Drug Audit:

46. Onor about November 13, 2012, Board inspectors P., H., and H. Went to Pharm Med
Services to conduct a follow up mspection. Sarao and pharmacist K, S. were present at the
pharmacy albng with several technicians and drivers. The inspectors went into the break' room
(“RM3”) and observed a male subject, later identiﬁed as R, S., one of the drivers, pushing bottles
into a drawer, R. S. closed the door quickly and left the building. The inspectors opened the
drawer and found a large bottle of olanzapiné 15 mg as well as multiple ﬁnlabeled and partially
labeled vials of drugs. On one side of RM3, there were multiple‘red totes stacked on the floor
(sorme of the totes appeared to contain the pharmacy’s current order from Cardinal Health), Other
red totes contained bubBle packs and open stock bottles of drugs used to fil the bubble packs-. In
another area of the room, there were multiple bags containing bubble packs of returned drugs (the
outside of the bags were marked “rgturn” m black marker), some of which were labeled with the
namé of a board and care facility, There were more bags in other areas of the room that contained
a mixture of returned medication vials and unlabeled and partially labeled vials of drugs.

47, The inspectors noticed several medication lists tacked on the wall. The lists contained
the names éf vagious drugs; their National Drug Caode, and a description of the drﬁg (color of the
tablet and any markings on the tablet), Many of the drugs the inspectors found in the unlabeled

12
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and partially labeled amber vials were included on the lists, The inspectors asked Sarao why pills
were being punched out of the returned bubble packs, sorted by individual drug, and placed in the

amber vials, Sarao claimed that they were sorting the pills by individual drug and returning the

‘drugs in amber vials as required by their reverse distributor, PharmaLink, Inc. (Inspector P. was

informed on February 13, 2013, by a representative of PharmalLink, Inc. that they had never '
received any drugs from Pharm Med Services in amber vials with just the n'ame on them). The
inspectors told Sarao that usually the pills were left in the bubble packs and placed in a Sharps
container or other similar container to be sealed and sent for destruction, |

48, The inspectors decided to conduct a drug audit to determine whether Pharm Med
Services staff were re-using the returned. drugs to dispense prescriptions to different patients
(patients other than the original user). The mnspectors selected 9 drugs that were found on the
medication lists and in the unlabeled and paxtiélly labeled vials in RM3 (which i’ndicated that they |
had been punched out of returned bubble packs): Invega 3 mg; Invega 6 rhg; Invega 9 mg,
Zyprexa 15 mg; olané:a‘pine 15 mg, Zyprexa 20 mg; Abilify 30 mg; Abilify 10 mg; and clozapine
200 rﬁg. The inspectors had M. G. count the number of tablets on hand of each drug; only drugs
in the pharmacy’s active inventory were counted (rione of the drﬁgs found in the botﬂes or vials in
RM3 were included). The mventory of the 9 drugs fevealed that all but two of the stock bottles
contained more tablets than were designated by the manufacturer (pharmacies that are engaged in
re-dispenéing previcusly dispensed medications will oﬁen have over-filled manufacturer bottles in
their active invéntory).' The inspeétors requésted cépies of the pharmacy’s acquisition records
from their 3 wholesalers, Cardinal Health (“Cardinal?’), McKesson Pharmaceuticals (“McKesson™),
and ParMed Pharmaceuticals (“ParMed’-’), for the period from J anﬁary 1, 2012 to November 13,.
.201'2, for each of the 9 drigs. Sarao produch ﬁ:cords from Cardinal and McKesson (Sarao stated
that she would send the records from ParMed later), but the records were for the wrong time

period. 2 The ins;iectors also requested and obtained copies of the pharmacy’s DUR (drug

% The inspectors had to clarify which records they needed several times before they
received the final acquisition records for MeKesson and Cardinal from Pharm Med Services, The
inspectors ultimately used the records provided direcily by Cardinal, McKesson, and ParMed in
their drug audit due to the incomplete acquisition records provided by the pharmacy.

13
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utilization report) records from Janﬁary 1,2012 to0 November 13, 2012 for the 9 andited drugs
(DUR reports show the total number of tablets dispensed for a specific drug over a selected time
period). - | |

49. Later, Inspector P, asked Sarao where the expired and improperly labeled vials of
drugs were that had been removed by the inspectors and placed into totes during the inspection of

November 8, 2012, 'Sarao admitted that the drugs bad been taken to their storage unit, Sarao also

had not returned the pharmacy records that were stored off site. The inspectors told Sarao to

return the drugs to the phatmacy immediately. Sarao told the inspectors that the drugs would be
returned within the next hour. Sarao then stated that pharmacy technician P. 8. had placed the
drugs in the storage unit so Sarao could better “count them to return™. The inspectors told Sarao
that a technician was not permitted to have_unsupérviséd access to the drugs in the storage unit.
Tater, the inspectors went through the piles of drugs that had been returned to the pharmacy and
examined the remmed-bubble'packs. -The ingpectors found various controlle{i substances mixed in
with the other drugs, including the controlled substances clonazepam 0.5 mg, zolpidern 10 mg, and
Lyrica 50 mg. The inspectors also found expired and unexpired stock bottles of drugs mixed in
with the bags of returned bubble packs, including clozapine 200 mg (the expiration date on the
bottle was Tuly 2014). A couple of hours later, P. S, arrived at the pharmacy with boxes of drugs
that she had retrieved from the storage unit, The inspectors noticed that.some of the drugs in the
boxes marked for disﬁogal contained drugs that were not expired.

| 50. Onand between December 31, 2012 and May 7, 2013, Inspector P. requested and
obtained from PlarMed, Cardinal, and McKesson pu;rchase and return records for Phanm Med
Services for the period from January 1, 2012 to November 13, 2012, for the 9 drugs audited,

51, Onor about February 22, 2013, InSpecfor P. received a letter from Ong, indicating
that 'the records located in the storage unit were not being moved back to the pharmacy until
approximate]j/ November 26, 2012.

IIl. Fo]low~Up Inspectidn of March 26, 2013:
- 52, On or about March 26, 2013, Inspector P. returned to Phartm Med Services to conduct
a follow-up inspection. Inspector P. asked Sarao to explain certain inventory discrepancies that

14
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had been identified in the drug audit as of that time. Sarao told Inspector P. that Pharm Med
Seryicés had two computer systems and that the mspectors had not received all of the DUR’s that
were stored on their “old” computer, Inspector P. requested that Sarao print oﬁt both the “bld"
and “new” DUR’s for the same date range of January 1, 2012 to November 13, 2012. Sarao |
produced the records as requested

1Y. Results of the Drug Audit:

53. The audit data and evidence collected during the Board’s inspections and invéstigation
revealed that Pharm Med Services dispensed and/or billed for more drugs than they purchased
from Cardinal, McKesson, and ParMed, specifically, Zyprexa 15 mg, Zyprexa 20 mg, Invega 9 mg,
Invega 6 mg,.Abilify 10 mg and Abilify 30 mg, for the time peﬁod from Janwary 1, 2012 to
November 13, 2012, as summarized in the table set forth below. The audit data also showed that

the Pharm Med Services purchased, but couid not account for, approximately 2,072 olanzapine 15

mg tablets.
Drug Name Beginning " | WIS 1 | WLS2 WLS 3 Purchase or | Disposition | Returns | Bnding Dizp, Variance
) nvenia ParMed | Mokesson | Cardinal | Acquisition | or DUR Invenjory | Total
Totals lotals .

Zyprexa 0 0 60 20 150 2911 -0 153 3064 2914
15mg A : . '
Zyprexa, 0 0 150 120 1270 | 2884 0 47 2931 | -2661
20 mg ‘ . -
Olanzepine | 0 10190 | 0 . 120 10310 8194 ¢ 44 8238 2072
15mg . _

[Tivega | 0 0 150 . | 480 630 665 D 63 728 | 98-
3mg
Invega 0 0 1530 1620 3150 3473 0 33 3506 -356
9 mg )
Invega 0 0 660 960 1620 | 1947 0 66 2013 <393
6 mg : ’
Abitify 0 0 1560 1680 3240 3870 0 83 13953 =713
10mg : :
Abilify 0 0 2490 2850 5340 6110 - 0 33 6143 803
0mg . .
Clozapine 0 ' 16200 | 1400 2900 20500 24242 0 54 24296 | -3796
200 mg :
H ' s ‘
I

* The inspectors conducted a zero-based audit since they did not have a beginning
inventory of the pharmacy’s active inventory, While zero-based audits are generally not effective
in determining small losses or small inventory disorepancies, they are effecnve or useful in
determining significant mvantory dascrepanmes
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FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Substantially Related Criminal Conviction)

54.  Respondents Ong, and Sarao are subject to disciplinary action for unprofessional
conduct pursuant to Code settion 4301, subdivision (/), in that Respondents both were convicted
ofa criminal charge substantially related to the practice of pharmecy as follows:

a.  Onorabout December 11, 2014, in the Sé.cramento County Superior Court case
entitled People v, Ligaya Sarao and Janis Elain Ong, case number 14F03930, Respondents Sarao |
and Ong were convicted upon each of their plea§ of no contest to one count each of violating
Health and Safety Code section 111440, The circumstances are that between approximately
January 1, 2012, and November 13, 2012, Respondents unlawfully sold, delivered, held, or offered
for sale drugs that were misbranded. '

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Acts Involving Moral Turpitade, i)ishonesty, Fraud, Deceit, or Corruption)

55, ll{espondents Pharm Med Services, Ong, and Sarao are subject to disciplinary action
pursuant to Code section 4301, subdivision (f), for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondents ‘
cor}mﬁtted acts involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, fraud, deceit, or corruption, aé. follows:

a. On and between Janvary 1,2012 and November 13, 2012, Respondents re-used
various dapgercus drugs, including, but not limited to, Zyprexa 15 mg, Zyprexa 20 mg, Invega _9
mg, Invega 6 mg, Abilify 10 mg and Abilify 30 mg, that were returned to the pharrﬁacy by board .
and care facilities, in order to re-dispense the drugs to different patients.

b.  Onand between January 1, 2012 and November 13, 2012, Respondents failed to
account for approximately 2,072 tablets of blanzapine 15 mg tablets, as set forthrabove. |

c. Cn or about November 8, 2012 and Novembér 13, 2012, Respondents had in their
active drug inventory vials of medications or pills whose labels were false or misleading in that the
vial labels did not contain the name of the drlig, manufacturér, strength, lot number and/or
expiration date. Consequently, the drugs were misbranded.

i
"
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THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE

(Violations of the Pharmacy Liaw and Federal and State
Laws and Regulations Governing_Pharmacy) ‘
56. Respondents Pharm Med Services, Ong, and Sarao are subject to disciplinary action

pursuant to Code section 4301, subdivision (o), for unprofessional conduct, in that Respondents

. viclated or attempted to violate, directly or indirectly, assisted in or abetted the violation of, or

congpired to viclate provisions or terms of the Pharmacy Law (Bus. & Prof. Code § 4300, et seq.)
and federal and state laws and regulations goveining pharmacy, as follows:

a.  Onor about November 8, 2012 and Novembei 13, 2012, Respondents had in their
active drug inventory various expired drugs, a large number of unlabeled vials of drugs, and
partially labeled vials of drugs whose labels were false or misleading in that the labels did not
contain the name of the drug, manufacturer, strength, lot number and/or cxpiratibn date, in
violation of Code section 4342. Further, Respondents had in their active drug inventory c;verﬁl]ed
stock.bottles of drugs and as a result thereof the actual lot number and expiration date of the
drugs were unclear.

b, Onand between Januéry 1, 2012, and November 13, 2012, Respondents unlawfully
sold, delivered, held, or offered for sale drugs that were misbranded as identified in paragraph 55,
subparag;faph (a), above, and by doing so violated Health and Safety Code section 111440, |

¢.  Onor about November 8, 2012, Respondents failed to have a current, complete and/or

accurate DEA. Biennial Inventory of all stocks of controlled substances on hand at the pharmacy in

that the inventory provided to Board Inspector C. did not list or show the pharmacy’s stock of
Schedule TI controlied substances and did not céntain the signature. of the pharmacist responsible
for the inventory or the date and time the inventory was completed, in violation of Title 21, Code
of Federal Regulations, section 1304,11, subdivision (a).

d.  On or about November 8, 2012, Respondents failed to maintain on their premises and
have available for inspection by the Board’s inspectors all records or other documentation of sale,
‘acquisition, and/or disposition of dangerous drugs and devices in a readily retrievable form, in
violation of Code séctions 4081, 4105, and 4333, Further, Respondents stored their pharmacy

17-
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records in an off-site storage unit withou‘g obtaining a waiver from the Board, and failed to return
the records to the pharmacy until approximately November 26, 2012, despite jh'e inspectors’
request o return the records immediately,

e.  Onor about November 8, 2012, Respondents authorized or permitted M. G. to act in
the capacity as a phanngcy {echnician, including fillisg bubble packs with drugs, while her
pharmacy technician license was expired or invalid, in violation of Code section 4115.

f On or about November 13, 2012, Respondents failed to maintain or ensurs the
security of the prescriptioﬂ department and/or include provisions for effective control agajnst theft
or diversion of dangerous drugs and devices in that Respondents allowed dangerous drugs to be
stored at the public storage unit, and authorized or permitted pharmacy technician P. S. to have:
unsupervised access to the drugs, in violation of California Code of Regulations, title 16, section
1714, subdivision.(d).

g Onor about November 13, 2012, Respondents received delivery of previously
dispensed controlled substances from facilities or ultimate users that were intended for disposal,
including, but not limited to, clonazepam 0.5 mg, zolpidem 10 mg, and Lyrica 50 mg when, in fact,
Respondents were not authorized to dispose of the controlled substances, in violation of Title 21,
United States Code section 822 and Title 21, Code of Federal Regulations, section 130721,

h. - Onand between {: anuéry-l, 2012 and November 13, 2012, Respondents fajled to
maintain accurate or completé records of sale, acquisition, or disposition of their stock of
dangerous drugs, failed to maintain a currént or accurate drug inventory, and failed to demonstrate
complete accountability of their mventory, in violation of Code sections 408 1, subdivision (a), and
4332 and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718, '

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE
(Violationé of U.S. Statutes Regulating Controlled Substances)

57. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action pursuant to Code section 4301,
gubdivision (j), for vnprofessional conduet, in that on or about November 13, 2012, Respondents
violated United States Code section 822, as set forth in subparagraph 56 (g) above. '
" '
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. OTHER MATTERS

Respondent Janis Elaine Ong

58, Pursuant to Code section 4307, if discipline is hﬁposled on Pharmacist License Number
RPH 35380, issued to Respondent Janig Elaime Ong, Janis Elaine Ong shall be prohibited from
serving as a manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director, associate, or partner for any
licensee during the time the discipline is imposed.

59,  Respondent Janis Elaine Ong had k;lowledge o‘f and/or knowingly participated in the
acts.orlomissions alleged above constituting érounds for discipline against Respondent Pharh Med
Services, .

60. Pursuant to-Code section 4307, if discipline is imposed on Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 43141, issued io Pharm Med Services, Respondent Janis Elaine Oﬂg shall be prohibited from
serving as a manager, administrator, owner, member, officer, director, associate, or partner for any
licensee during the time the discipline is imposed.

Respondent Ligaya Sarao

61. Pursuant to Code section 4307, if discipline is imposed on Pharmacist License Number .
RPH 40744, issued to Respondent Ligaya Sarao, Ligaya Sarao shall be. prohibited from serving as
a manager, administrator, owner, fnember, officer, director,' associate, or éartner for any licensee
during the-time the discipline is imposéd.- | | _

62. Respondent Ligaya Sarao had knowledge of and/or knowingly participated in the acts
or omissions alleged above constituting grounds for discipline against Respondent Pharm Med
Sérvices. | .

63, Pursuant to Code section 4307, if diséipline is imposed on Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 43141, issued to Pharrri Med Services, Respondent Ligaya Sarao shall be prohibited from
serving as é‘rhanager, administrator, owner, member, officer, dircctorl, associate, or partner for any
licensee during the time the discipline is imposed, |
i |
i
7ii
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WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged,
and that followihg the hearing, the Board of Pharinacy i§311e a decision:

1. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit Number PHY 43141, issued to Pharm Med
Services;

2. Revoking or suspendiﬂg Pharmacist License Number RPH 35380, issued to Janis
Elaine Ong;

3. Prohibiting Janis Elaine dng from serﬁng as a manager, administrator, owner,
member, officer, director, associate, or partner for any licensee during fhe time the discipline lS
imposed on Pharmacist License Number RPH 35380, issued to Janis Elaine Ong, and/or Pharmacyl
Permit Number PHY 43141; issued to Pharm Med Services;

4,  Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number RPH 40744, issued to Ligaya
Sarao;

5.  Prohibiting Ligaya Sarao from serving as 4 manager, administrator, owner, mémber,
officer, director, associate; 61~ partner for a‘hy licensee during the time the disciialine is imposed on
Pharmacist License Number RPH 40744, issued to Ligays Sarao and/or Pharmacy Permit Number
PHY 43141, issued to Pharm Med Services;

6. Ordering Pharm Med Services, Janis Elaine Ong, and Ligaya Sarao to pay the Board
of Pharmacy the reasonable cdsts of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to
Business and Professions Code gection 125.3;

7. Takmg such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper.

DATED; /7"/5//5 ) s /nwu

IRGINLA ROLD
Bregutive fﬁcer
Board of Pharmacy
Department of Consumer Affairs
State of California
Complainan!

SA2014115497
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